
 

 

 

Oregon 

  Investment 

Council 

 

                     
 

 

      September 24, 2014 

        9:00 AM 

 
       PERS Headquarters 

                     11410 S.W. 68th Parkway 

          Tigard, OR  97223               
 

 

 

 

 
 

Dick Solomon 

  Chair 

    

                John Skjervem 

             Chief Investment Officer 

 

Ted Wheeler 

 State Treasurer 
 

 



Dick Solomon Katy Durant Rukaiyah Adams Keith Larson Ted Wheeler Paul Cleary 
Chair Vice-Chair Member Member State Treasurer PERS Director 

OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
 

 

Agenda 
 

September 24, 2014 

9:00 AM 

 

PERS Headquarters 

11410 S.W. 68
th

 Parkway 

Tigard, OR  97223 

 

 

 

Time A. Action Items Presenter Tab 

 

9:00-9:05 1. Review & Approval of Minutes Dick Solomon 1 

   July 30 & August 13, 2014 Regular Meeting OIC Chair 

 

   Committee Reports John Skjervem 

     Chief Investment Officer 

 

9:05-9:45 2. Dimensional Fund Advisors  Mike Viteri 2 

 OPERF Public Equity Senior Investment Officer 

  Savina Rizova 

  Vice President, DFA 

  Grady Smith 

  Senior Portfolio Manager & VP, DFA 

  Joe Young   
  Vice President, DFA 

  Jim Callahan 

  Callan 

 

9:45-10:30 3. OPERF Real Estate Review Tony Breault 3 

   Senior Investment Officer 

   Christy Fields 
   PCA 

 

10:30-10:45  -------------------- BREAK -------------------- 

 

 

 

10:45-10:50 4. OIC Private Equity Consultant Contract Mike Mueller 4 

  OIC Policy 4.01.13 Deputy CIO 

 

 

 

 

 



Dick Solomon Katy Durant Rukaiyah Adams Keith Larson Ted Wheeler Paul Cleary 
Chair Vice-Chair Member Member State Treasurer PERS Director 

 

 

  OIC Meeting Agenda 

  September 24, 2014 

  Page 2 

 

 

10:50-11:00 5. OIC Policy Updates  Mike Mueller 5 

   Karl Cheng 

   Investment Officer 

 B. Information Items 

 

11:00-11:10 6. Asset Allocations & NAV Updates John Skjervem 6 

  a. Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund 

  b. SAIF Corporation 

  c. Common School Fund 

  d. HiEd Pooled Endowment Fund 

 

 7. Calendar — Future Agenda Items  7 

 

  8. Other Items Council 

    Staff 

     Consultants 

 

 C. Public Comment Invited 

  15 Minutes 



 

 

 

 

TAB 1 – REVIEW & APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

July 30, 2014 Regular Meeting 

August 13, 2014 Regular Meeting  

OST Committee Reports – Verbal 



 

 

JOHN D. SKJERVEM 
CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER 
INVESTMENT DIVISION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PHONE 503-378-4111 
FAX 503-378-6772 
 

   

STATE OF OREGON 
OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER 

350 WINTER STREET NE, SUITE 100 
SALEM, OREGON 97301-3896 

 
 

OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
JULY 30, 2014 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
Members Present: Rukaiyah Adams, Paul Cleary, Katy Durant, Keith Larson, Dick Solomon, 

Ted Wheeler 
 
Staff Present: Darren Bond, Tony Breault, Austin Carmichael, Karl Cheng, Michael Cox, 

Garrett Cudahey, Sam Green, Scott Harra, Andy Hayes, John Hershey, 
Brooks Hogle, Julie Jackson, Kristin Johnson, Drew Johnston, Perrin Lim, 
Tom Lofton, Ben Mahon, Mike Mueller, Tom Rinehart, Priyanka Shukla, 
John Skjervem, Michael Viteri, Byron Williams 

 
Consultants Present: David Fann, Kyson Hawkins and Tom Martin (TorreyCove); Alan Emkin, 

David Glickman, Christy Fields and John Linder (PCA); Jim Callahan and 
Janet Becker-Wold (Callan) 

 
Legal Counsel Present: Dee Carlson and Deena Bothello, Oregon Department of Justice 
 
 
The July 30, 2014 OIC meeting was called to order at 9:00 am by Dick Solomon, Chair. 
 
 
I. 9:00 am Review and Approval of Minutes 

MOTION: Ms. Durant moved approval of the May 28, 2014 meeting and workshop minutes.  
Treasurer Wheeler seconded the motion, which then passed by a 5/0 vote. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
John Skjervem, CIO gave an update on committee actions taken since the May 28, 2014 OIC 
Meeting. 
 

Private Equity Committee – 2014: 
June 19, 2014 Veritas Capital Fund V $150 million 
June 19, 2014 Sofinnova Venture Partners Fund IX $50 million 
June 19, 2014 Orchid Asia Fund VI $75-100 million 
 
Alternatives Portfolio Committee – 2014: 
No action since May 28, 2014 
 
Opportunity Portfolio Committee – 2014: 
July 29, 2014 Galton Mortgage Recovery Fund III $50 million 
 
Real Estate Committee – 2014: 
No action since May 28, 2014 



OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
JULY 30, 2014 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
 

Page 2 

II. 9:01 am GIP Capital Solutions Fund, LP - OPERF Alternative Portfolio 
Ben Mahon, Alternatives Investment Officer introduced Jim Jenkins, Managing Director and Reiner 
Boehning, CAPS Fund Partner with GIP.  Staff and TorreyCove recommended a $200 million 
commitment to the GIP Capital Solutions Fund, L.P., subject to satisfactory negotiation of all terms 
and conditions with staff working in concert with Department of Justice personnel. 
 
GIP’s objective with the Fund is to provide non-equity financing for infrastructure companies and 
assets.  Reflecting a flexible investment approach, Fund transactions are expected to span the 
capital structure, including secured, subordinated, unsecured, convertible debt and preferred 
equity.  In addition, select transactions may also benefit from warrants or other forms of upside 
participation.  With this Fund, GIP will focus primarily on its traditional target industries (e.g., 
energy, transportation, water and waste), and expects to make 20 to 25 investments ranging in size 
from $50 million to $250 million.  The firm’s geographic focus will be on OECD countries, although 
GIP may invest up to 10% of Fund capital in non-OECD countries as well.  Individual Fund 
investments are generally expected to have stated maturities of five to ten years, with most 
investments repaid prior to maturity, as is typical for infrastructure asset financings. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Larson moved approval the staff recommendation.  Ms. Adams seconded the motion, 
which then passed on a 5/0 vote. 
 
 

III. 9:53 am Lionstone Oregon Real Estate One – OPERF Real Estate Portfolio 
Anthony Breault, Senior Real Estate Investment Officer introduced Dan Dubrowski and Glenn 
Lowenstein, both Founding Partners and Jane Page, CEO of Lionstone.  Staff and PCA 
recommended a $200 million commitment to Lionstone Oregon Real Estate One subject to 
satisfactory negotiation of all terms and conditions with staff working in concert with Department of 
Justice personnel.  This commitment would be a continuation of an existing OPERF relationship 
with Lionstone Partners. 
 
Lionstone OPERF Real Estate One (“LORE One”) represents an attractive opportunity to pursue a 
value-add investment strategy while preserving sufficient flexibility to hold individual assets when 
their return profiles more closely reflect the parameters of a core investment strategy.  Staff 
confidence in the investment’s unique two-tranche structure is bolstered by the successful nature of 
its long-term relationship with Lionstone as well as the many control and oversight rights the 
proposed joint venture affords OPERF. 
 
The proposed LORE One vehicle represents a follow-on commitment and adaptation of the existing 
“CFO One” joint venture between OPERF and Lionstone.  CFO One was originally formed with the 
purpose of acquiring office assets and achieving a 9.5% annual net cash-on-cash return over a 10-
year hold period.  As with CFO One, LORE One will continue to focus on office properties in high 
growth markets but with added flexibility to invest up to 20% in non-office real estate such as 
multifamily or retail.  Also like CFO One, LORE One will be evergreen in nature so that capital and 
income distributions from the joint venture may be reinvested in the partnership as recallable 
capital. 
 
After extensive back-testing of current portfolio performance, as well as proprietary research on 
market attributes and real estate return drivers, the Firm’s target returns for new asset acquisitions, 
portfolio incentive fee structures and geographic focus have been substantially updated for LORE 
One.  Specifically, LORE One’s geographic targets have been redefined to include investments in 
internationally competitive markets while also meeting specific criteria needed to satisfy a 
permanent location test.  The target returns and incentive fee structures have been renegotiated to 
include a two-part, or tranche, portfolio structure with a lower overall risk strategy than the Firm’s 
predecessor vehicle. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Durant moved approval of the staff recommendation.  Treasurer Wheeler seconded 
the motion, which then passed on a 4/1 vote with Mr. Larson voting no. 



OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
JULY 30, 2014 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
 

Page 3 

IV. 10:50 am Internal Investment Management Assessment – Public Equity and Fixed Income 
Eileen Neill and Karim Simplis from Wilshire Associates presented an assessment of the Oregon 
State Treasury’s internal investment management capabilities.  Wilshire conducted an on-site 
review of the internal fixed income and equity teams’ personnel, investment processes and 
resources.  This review was performed as part of a broader project to assess OST’s internal asset 
management functions and resources and in preparation for an operations and risk management 
recommendation staff will propose at the August 13, 2014 OIC meeting. 
 
 

V. 11:27 am Oregon Savings Growth Plan – Oregon 457 Plan 
Karl Cheng, Investment Officer and Jake O’Shaughnessy, Advisor with Arnerich Messena, made 
the following recommendations for the Oregon Savings Growth Plan: 

1. Extend the current consulting contract with Arnerich Massena; 
2. Relax the limitations on the Self-Directed Brokerage Account option to permit more 

choices; 
3. Change the fund roster and corresponding benchmarks of various equity options; 
4. Revise the Intermediate Fixed Income option; 
5. Add a Real Return option; and 
6. Update various OSGP-related OST/OIC policies. 

 
MOTION: Ms. Durant made a motion to a) approve staff recommendation items 1 through 5 and b) 
request additional clarification on item #6 for consideration at the September 24, 2014 OIC 
meeting.  Treasurer Wheeler seconded the motion, which then passed on a 5/0 vote. 
 
 

VI. 11:43 am Public University Fund Investment Guidelines – Fixed Income 
Tom Lofton, Fixed Income Investment Officer, presented guidelines for the Public University Fund 
(the “PUF”) for review and adoption by the OIC.  PUF represents a new fixed income mandate 
internally managed by staff. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Larson moved approval of the staff recommendation.  Treasurer Wheeler seconded 
the motion, which then passed on a 5/0 vote. 
 
 

VII. 11:47 am Asset Allocations and NAV Updates 
Mr. Skjervem reviewed asset allocations and NAV’s across OST-managed accounts for the period 
ended June 30, 2014. 
 
 

VIII. 11:50 am Calendar – Future Agenda Items 
Mr. Skjervem presented a revised schedule of future OIC meetings and associated agenda topics. 
 
 

IX. 11:50 am Other Business 
Treasurer Wheeler introduced the following three new OST staff members: Drew Johnston, 
Legislative Director; Kristin Johnson, Senior Policy Advisor; and Michael Cox, Communications and 
Outreach Director. 
 
 
11:53 am Public Comments 
Bill Parish, an independent Registered Investment Advisor, addressed the Council with various 
comments about private equity partnership audits, fees and carried interest accounting treatments. 
 
Specifically, he expressed concerns regarding tax inversions orchestrated by private equity and 
hedge funds which he asserted allowed such firms to take illegitimate carried interest deductions in 



OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
JULY 30, 2014 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
 

Page 4 

violation of the "fractions rule."  He further suggested that these firms generated returns by utilizing 
a "tax deduction pyramid" scheme comprised of tax inversions, interest deductions and job/benefit 
reductions.  He referred to this strategy as a "roll-up phenomena” and expressed an alternative 
preference for greater emphasis on publicly-traded investments which he claimed would benefit the 
overall PERS system in terms of both investment returns and tax revenues. 
 
 

Mr. Solomon adjourned the meeting at 11:57 am. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

Julie Jackson 
Executive Support Specialist 



 

JOHN D. SKJERVEM 
CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER 
INVESTMENT DIVISION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PHONE 503-378-4111 
FAX 503-378-6772 
 

   

STATE OF OREGON 
OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER 

350 WINTER STREET NE, SUITE 100 
SALEM, OREGON 97301-3896 

 
 

OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
AUGUST 13, 2014 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
 
Members Present: Rukaiyah Adams, Paul Cleary, Katy Durant, Dick Solomon, Ted Wheeler 
 
Member on Phone: Keith Larson who dialed in at 10:25 AM 
 
Staff Present: Darren Bond, Tony Breault, Michael Cox, Garrett Cudahey, Sam Green, 

Andy Hayes, John Hershey, Brooks Hogle, Julie Jackson, Kristin Johnson, 
Drew Johnston, Carmen Leiva, Perrin Lim, Tom Lofton, Ben Mahon, Mike 
Mueller, Paola Nealon, Priyanka Shukla, John Skjervem, Michael Viteri, 
Byron Williams 

 
Consultants Present: David Fann (TorreyCove); Alan Emkin and John Linder (PCA); Jim 

Callahan (Callan) 
 
Legal Counsel Present: Dee Carlson and Deena Bothello, Oregon Department of Justice 
 
 
The August 13, 2014 OIC meeting was called to order at 9:00 am by Dick Solomon, Chair. 
 
 
I. 9:00 am Investment Solutions Project and Recommendation 

Darren Bond, Deputy State Treasurer and John Skjervem, Chief Investment Officer described the 
history and purpose of the Oregon State Treasury’s Investment Solutions Project and previewed 
staff’s recommendation that the Oregon Investment Council (OIC) approve and execute a contract 
with BlackRock Solutions (BRS) to acquire an integrated suite of operating and risk management 
services.  These services are deemed necessary by staff and Oregon State Treasury (OST) 
management to rectify deficiencies within and throughout OST’s current investment platform by 
providing staff with a set of contemporary tools and best practices in support of the State’s $90 
billion investment portfolio. 
 
In 2011, and immediately following the OIC’s mandated, regular investment program audit, OST 
began work on a comprehensive evaluation of its investment management capabilities.  This effort 
included the observations and examinations of several leading industry consultants, and produced 
a detailed assessment of OST’s current strengths and weaknesses in terms of personnel, 
technology, operating procedures and risk management.  The assessment was further illuminated 
by a comparison to other public and private asset management organizations similar in size and 
scope to OST. 
 
While the assessment resulted in high marks for OST in certain areas such as historical investment 
returns and staff quality, it also highlighted pronounced weaknesses in technology, operations and 
risk management.  In fact, when one particular consultant evaluated OST solely as an asset 
manager (i.e., independent of its broader assignments and fiduciary responsibilities), these 



OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
AUGUST 13, 2014 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
 

Page 2 

weaknesses were considered severe enough to warrant a “would not recommend” rating.  
Moreover, rapid recent growth in both the size and complexity of the State’s investment portfolio 
now conspires with these operating and risk management deficiencies to put the sustainability of 
the State’s vaunted long-term investment track record in jeopardy. 
 
Fortunately, specific investments in technology combined with the adoption of new operating and 
risk management procedures can mitigate (and in many cases ameliorate) the weaknesses 
identified in the original audit and subsequent third-party consulting reports.  These new tools and 
procedures are required immediately to fortify staff’s current activities, and will also provide OST 
with a modern platform from which to successfully manage State funds in an increasingly complex 
and volatile investment environment. 
 
 

II. 9:07 am Investment Operations Current State – Strategic Risk Assessment Report 
Byron Williams, OST Chief Audit Executive, and Michael Chung and Chip Morgan from Deloitte & 
Touche LLP, presented the findings from a comprehensive assessment of OST’s current 
investment management platform and well as described alternative approaches for improvement 
and future state success. 
 
Based on the assessment and analysis of the aforementioned operational infrastructure elements 
across the in-scope functional areas, as well as the understanding of prudent industry practices, 
Deloitte & Touche identified a number of risks related to OST’s investment operations and provided 
recommendations for management’s consideration in the following five categories: Organizational 
Structure; Human Capital Management; Governance, Oversight and Compliance; Data 
Governance and Information Management; and Systems and Technology.  Certain 
recommendations such as the development and implementation of a talent management strategy 
or automation of manual processes were explained to apply generally to the entire organization 
while other recommendations were more specific to a particular process, workflow and/or control 
procedure within a high-risk area. 
 
 

III. 9:27 am Investment Solutions Project Business Case 
Byron Williams introduced Shankar Subramanian and Tom Nichols with Cutter Associates, who 
then presented the specific solutions Cutter Associates recommends to address deficiencies 
identified in the current state assessment of OST’s investment management platform. 
 
 

IV. 10:00 am BlackRock Solutions 
Larry Schwartz and Yevgeny Gelfand of BlackRock described the capabilities and services 
proposed by BlackRock Solutions and its Aladdin investment management platform which include 
order management, operations outsourcing and enterprise risk management services.  These 
services are expected to accomplish the following objectives: 1) significantly reduce operational risk 
and improve staff efficiencies; improve transparency of portfolio investment and risk exposures; 
increase the analytic sophistication and reporting frequency for OST and the OIC; establish an 
independent risk management oversight function and implement risk governance procedures; and 
implement an enterprise investment platform using a partner with a proven track record. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Larson moved approval of staff’s recommendation to retain BlackRock Solutions 
subject to OST obtaining budget approval for additional personnel to implement and operate the 
Aladdin investment management platform.  Ms. Adams seconded the motion which then passed on 
a 5/0 vote. 
 



OREGON INVESTMENT COUNCIL 
AUGUST 13, 2014 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
 

Page 3 

 
V. 10:45 am Common School Fund – Public Equity Portfolio 

Mike Mueller, OST Deputy Chief Investment Officer and Jim Callahan with Callan Associates 
recommended OIC approval for a new investment mandate with ClearBridge to manage a 
domestic, mid-cap core equity allocation (approximately $34 million as of June 30, 2014) on behalf 
of the Common School Fund subject to the successful negotiation of terms and conditions with staff 
working in concert with the Oregon Department of Justice. 
 
MOTION: Ms. Durant moved approval of the staff recommendation.  Treasurer Wheeler seconded 
the motion which then passed on a 4/0 vote (Mr. Larson had dropped off the call at that time). 
 
 

VI. 10:50 am Other Items 
None 
 
 

Mr. Solomon adjourned the meeting at 10:50 am. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 

Julie Jackson 
Executive Support Specialist 



 

 

 

 

TAB 2 – DIMENSIONAL FUND ADVISORS  



Page 1 of 4 

 

Public Equities 
Domestic Equity – DFA Large Cap Core 

STAFF RECOMENDATION 
 
Purpose 
Staff requests OIC approval for a $2 billion allocation to the Dimensional Fund Advisors (DFA) Large Cap 
Core strategy for the OPERF portfolio. 
 
Executive Summary 
Consistent excess returns from traditional, discretionary active management in the large cap portion of the 
OPERF domestic equity portfolio have been difficult to achieve over the long-term.  In this highly efficient 
segment of the market, staff proposes to systematically tilt the portfolio (at very low cost) towards the 
factor exposures of value, size and profitability.  Historically, these particular factor exposures have 
generated excess returns, and often explain much or all of active managers’ outperformance over time.  
I.e., unique factor exposures – rather than stock picking abilities – are often the driver of active 
management alpha among public equity managers.  Staff believes this method of active risk taking (i.e., 
deliberate factor tilts) has, net of fees, a higher probability of long-term success than traditional, 
discretionary active management. 
 
Discussion 
Although the Total Public Equity Portfolio has met the OIC policy return objective of 75 basis points of 
excess return while utilizing only half the policy’s 200 bps tracking error allowance, the objective has been 
achieved, in large part, through the success of the portfolio’s International Equity implementation. 
 
Exhibit 1 below shows that between December 1978 (the inception date for the Russell 3000) and June 
2014, OPERF’s Domestic Equity allocation generated an annualized excess return of 21 basis points over the 
Russell 3000.  Staff’s regression analysis of the Domestic Equity portfolio’s 36-year return history using a 
standard four-factor model reveals that a significant portion of the portfolio’s 21 basis points of excess 
returns came simply from the portfolio’s small cap tilt.  The International Equity allocation, on the other 
hand, produced 148 basis points of annualized excess return, albeit over a shorter time horizon.  Although 
active management in both the Domestic Equity and International Equity portfolios faced headwinds during 
the financial crises that began in 2008, excess returns in the International Equity portfolio have remained 
more resilient. 
 
Exhibit 1   10-Year Rolling Annualized Excess Returns 

 
Source: State Street Bank 
 

-2.0%

-1.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

19
87

19
88

19
89

19
90

19
91

19
92

19
93

19
94

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

Dom Eq Since 1978 Intl Eq Since 1987



Page 2 of 4 

 

Pension funds generally achieve exposure to public equity markets by assigning particular mandates (e.g., 
large cap, small cap, growth, value, international, etc.) to managers who attempt to outperform their 
respective benchmarks.  For large pension funds like OPERF, this traditional implementation results in a 
large roster of active managers, often with high associated costs.  The excess returns produced by these 
managers are often attributed to manager skill and labelled “alpha”; however, empirical studies on mutual 
funds and a small but growing literature on institutional asset management have demonstrated that a large 
portion of what was once considered alpha is now instead recognized as return premia connected to tilts or 
specific factor exposures (i.e., return premia associated with factor exposures such as size, value, 
momentum, profitability, etc.).  The implication of these findings is that investors may be paying active fees 
for what are ostensibly factor-based exposures which can instead be more easily and much more cost 
effectively captured through systematic, “engineered” strategies. 
 
Given the efficiency of the U.S. Large Cap Equity space (i.e., the difficulty of finding managers that 
consistently outperform net of fees) and Oregon’s own experience in this particular asset class, a 
reasonable argument can be made to allocate capital to engineered strategies in this segment of OPERF’s 
public equity allocation. 
 
Firm & Strategy 
Founded in 1981, DFA is a private limited partnership owned primarily by its founders, employees and 
company directors.  The firm is headquartered in Austin, Texas, employs over 760 people firm-wide and 
maintains regional and investment offices around the world with trading and portfolio management 
activities based primarily in Austin, Santa Monica, London, Singapore, Tokyo, and Sydney.  As of June 30, 
2014, DFA reported $378 billion in assets under management (“AUM”) in a variety of equity and fixed 
income products. 
 
DFA’s investment philosophy is based on a large and rich body of academic research which shows that small 
companies (as measured by market capitalization) and value stocks (as measured by book/market price 
ratios) provide greater expected returns relative to large companies and growth stocks, respectively.  
Specifically, this research supports the notion that while small and value stocks are more volatile, these 
“size” and “value” risk factors generate excess returns for long term investors.  This research initially 
focused on U.S. equities (see Exhibit 2 for U.S. size and value return deciles), but later expanded to 
international equities and today serves as the foundation for DFA’s equity investment strategies. 
 
Exhibit 2  Historical Decile Performances of US Size and Value 

 
Source: Dimensional Fund Advisors 



Page 3 of 4 

 

 
In addition to investing in the two dimensions (or common factors) for which the firm is known (i.e., size 
and value), DFA has produced research on the investment efficacy of a Profitability factor which the firm 
integrated into its portfolio construction process in late 2013.  Contemporary academic research now 
supports the premise that all three of these common factors (namely, size, value and profitability) 
command persistent and statistically significant return premia over time (see Exhibit 3).  Return premia for 
size and value, respectively have been about 3.6 percent and 4.8 percent per year since 1927i.  The return 
premium for profitability has been around 5.6 percent per year since 1975ii. 
 
Exhibit 3 Historical Performance of Common Factors over Rolling Periods 

 
Source: Dimensional Fund Advisors 

 
DFA maintains strong ties to the academic community.  For example, University of Chicago Nobel Laureate 
Eugene Fama, MIT Nobel Laureate, Robert Merton, Dartmouth’s Kenneth French and Wharton’s Donald 
Keim all serve as consultants and provide on-going research in support of current and proposed DFA 
investment initiatives.  Investment researcher Roger Ibbotson and Nobel Laureates Robert Merton and 
Myron Scholes also serve as directors of the firm’s mutual funds board. 
 
DFA manages over $25 billion in dedicated U.S. Large Cap strategies with track records extending back to 
February 1993.  The newest DFA large cap strategy which tilts towards size (more mid cap than small cap), 
value and profitability is an open-end institutional mutual fund with a track record that started on June 25, 
2013 (ticker: DUSQX).  Staff reviewed the existing strategy and worked collaboratively with DFA on 
structural changes so that the proposed separate account large cap core strategy would better complement 
OPERF’s return and risk objectives. 
 
The OIC is familiar with DFA as it has previously approved five DFA mandates which are managed identically 
to Large Cap Core: World ex-U.S. Small Cap Value (January 2009); Emerging Markets Small Cap (May 2010); 
Micro Cap Value (January 2013); International Micro Cap Value (March 2014); and, for the Oregon Savings 
Growth Plan, Emerging Markets Core (February 2011).  Given the long relationship Oregon has enjoyed 
with DFA and the multiple mandates that the OIC has funded with the firm, staff negotiated a management 
fee that is significantly less than the already low average active management fee that OPERF pays it existing 
large cap managers. 
  



Page 4 of 4 

 

Issues to Consider 
 
Pros: 

 Staff has very high regard for DFA as a firm.  Current DFA/OPERF mandates have met or exceeded 
investment return and risk objectives. 

 Given the existing investment relationships, staff was successful in negotiating a considerable fee 
discount.  The management fee for this strategy will be approximately 25 percent of the active 
large cap strategies it will replace. 

 This strategy is consistent with OIC’s Statement of Investment and Management Beliefs {Section 
5.A. Inefficiencies that can be exploited by active management may exist in certain segments of the 
capital markets.  The nature (i.e., perceived magnitude and likely duration) of such inefficiencies 
should inform the proposed active management strategy (e.g., discretionary or systematic)} and 
{Section 6.A. All fees, expenses, commissions and transaction costs should be diligently monitored 
and managed in order to maximize net investment returns}. 

 This approach will provide direct exposures to common factors that exhibit robust empirical 
support as persistent sources of excess returns. 

 The proposed strategy is aimed at the most liquid segment of the public equity market (U.S. large 
cap) and should have little or no market impact in the reallocation of existing mandates. 

Cons: 

 This is a new strategy with a short track record.  {Mitigant: The firm has successfully introduced 
new products in this space several times over the course of its 32 year history.} 

 Due to its deeper value bias, this product may under-perform during certain market environments. 

 Return premia associated with common factors such as those targeted by this strategy have 
historically produced long-term outperformance but have also experienced significant, multi-year 
periods of underperformance.  [Mitigant: Strong empirical evidence supports both the efficacy of 
these factor premia (i.e., these factors produce a higher mean return relative to market averages) 
as well as reversions to this higher mean following periods of underperformance.  Additionally, the 
tracking error relative to the Russell 1000 for the proposed strategy is in-line with that of current, 
traditional active management strategies.] 

 By tilting towards value, among other common factors, the OST Public Equity Portfolio will no 
longer be neutral relative to Value and Growth dimensions per OIC Policy 04.05.01.  [Mitigant: 
Portfolio exposures in Public Equity will continue to be managed relative to the MSCI ACWI IMI 
benchmark and through the OIC’s 75 basis point return target and 200 basis point annual tracking 
error objective.] 

 
Recommendation 

1) Staff and Callan recommend funding DFA’s Large Cap Core strategy with a) an initial commitment of 
$2 billion and b) the option to increase this mandate to $4 billion subject to CIO approval. 

2) Amend OIC policy 04-05-01 accordingly. 
 
 

                                                 
i
 Value and size premia (1927 – 2012) provided by Fama/French are calculated using market-weighted long/short spreads.  Returns 
are not representative of indices or actual portfolios and do not reflect costs and fees associated with an actual investment. 
ii
 Profitability premium (1975-2012) provided by DFA using CRSP, Compustat and Bloomberg data is calculated using market-

weighted long/short spreads.  Returns are not representative of indices or actual portfolios and do not reflect costs and fees 
associated with an actual investment. 



Oregon Investment Council 
Proposed  DFA Large Cap Strategy (Simulated) 

September 24, 2014 

Savina Rizova, PhD, Vice President 

Grady Smith, CFA, Senior Portfolio Manager and Vice President 

This information is provided for institutional investors and registered investment advisors, and is not intended for public use.  
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP is an investment advisor registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

#17625-1011 



“Dimensional” refers to the Dimensional separate but affiliated entities generally, rather than to one particular entity. These entities are Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund Advisors Ltd., DFA Australia Limited,  

 Dimensional Fund Advisors Canada ULC, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd., and Dimensional Japan Ltd. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Strategies may not be successful.  

Dimensional Fund Advisors 
  

Dimensional is a global investment firm that has been  

serving investors for more than 30 years. 

A strong belief in markets frees us to think differently  

about investing. 

We identify compelling research and apply it to  

practical investing.  

Decades of research and rigorous testing underpin  

our approach to pursuing higher expected returns. 

Our goal is to add value over benchmarks and peers  

through an integrated and robust process. 

We have a long history managing time-tested  

investment strategies for clients. 

1 

ABOUT THE FIRM 

A DYNAMIC INVESTMENT PROCESS 

A DIFFERENT APPROACH TO INVESTING 

PUTTING RESEARCH INTO PRACTICE 

A CLEAR VIEW OF EXPECTED RETURNS 

OUR TRACK RECORD 



As of April 14, 2014 

1. Dimensional US Mutual Funds” refer to The DFA Investment Trust Company, DFA Investment Dimensions Group Inc., Dimensional Investment Group Inc. and Dimensional Emerging Markets Value Fund Inc. 

Leading Financial Economists and Researchers 

2 

Academics on Dimensional Fund Advisors LP’s Board of Directors 

Eugene Fama, PhD, Nobel laureate  University of Chicago 

Kenneth French, PhD  Dartmouth College 

Academics on Dimensional’s US Mutual Funds Board of Directors1 

George Constantinides, PhD University of Chicago 

John Gould, PhD University of Chicago 

Edward Lazear, PhD Stanford University 

Roger Ibbotson, PhD Yale University 

Myron Scholes, PhD, Nobel laureate Stanford University 

Abbie Smith, PhD University of Chicago 

Academics Providing Ongoing Consulting Services to Dimensional 

Robert Merton, PhD, Nobel laureate Massachusetts Institute of Technology 

Robert Novy-Marx, PhD University of Rochester 

Sunil Wahal, PhD Arizona State University

  

Leaders of Dimensional’s  

Internal Research Staff 

Eduardo Repetto, PhD, Director,  

Co-Chief Executive Officer,  

and Co-Chief Investment Officer 

Gerard O’Reilly, PhD, Co-Chief Investment 

Officer and Head of Research  

James Davis, PhD, Vice President 

Marlena Lee, PhD, Vice President 

Savina Rizova, PhD, Vice President 

Stanley Black, PhD, Vice President 

Wes Crill, PhD 

Tu Nguyen, CFA, PhD 

Massi De Santis, PhD 

Vito Sciaraffia, PhD 

Dave Twardowski, PhD 

Yusun Samuel Wang, PhD 

#22675-0312 

Don’t forget to 

change the 

effective date 



Dimensional Fund Advisors LP founded in 1981. Global AUM  and number of employees as of June 30, 2014.  

Locations with offices operated by Dimensional. “Dimensional” refers to the Dimensional separate but affiliated entities generally, rather than to one particular entity. These entities are Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund 

Advisors Ltd., DFA Australia Limited, Dimensional Fund Advisors Canada ULC, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd., and Dimensional Japan Ltd. 

Global Investment Team,  
One Dynamic Process  

3 

Vancouver 

Santa Monica 
Austin 

London 
Amsterdam 

Berlin 

Singapore 

Sydney 

Tokyo 

Investment Personnel 

Client Service 

764 employees globally 

$378B in global AUM 

Founded in 1981 

Don’t forget to 

change the 

effective date 

Toronto 

Melbourne 



Investment Committee1 Portfolio Management Trading 
Average 20 Years Experience Average 13 Years Experience Average 12 Years Experience 

David Booth, Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer 

Eduardo Repetto, Director, Co-Chief Executive Officer, 
and Co-Chief Investment Officer 

Joseph Chi, Investment Committee Chairman 
and Co-Head of Portfolio Management 

Stephen Clark, Head of Global Institutional Services  
and Senior Portfolio Manager 

Robert Deere, Investment Director and  
Senior Portfolio Manager  

Jed Fogdall, Co-Head of Portfolio Management 

Henry Gray, Head of Global Equity Trading 

Joseph Kolerich, Senior Portfolio Manager 

Gerard O’Reilly, Co-Chief Investment Officer 
and Head of Research  

David Plecha, Global Head of Fixed Income 

Karen Umland, Head of Investment Strategies Group  
and Senior Portfolio Manager 
 

Austin 

Jed Fogdall, Co-Head of Portfolio Management 

Joseph Kolerich, Senior Portfolio Manager 

Stephen Clark, Head of Global Institutional Services  
and Senior Portfolio Manager 

Portfolio Managers: Alan Hutchison, Arun Keswani, Travis 
Meldau, Pamela Noble, Mary Phillips, Joel Schneider,     
Bhanu Singh, Lukas Smart 

Santa Monica 

Joseph Chi, Co-Head of Portfolio Management 

Robert Deere, Investment Director and  
Senior Portfolio Manager 

David Plecha, Global Head of Fixed Income 

Grady Smith, Senior Portfolio Manager 

Karen Umland, Senior Portfolio Manager 

Portfolio Managers: David Kershner, John Law, Daniel Ong, 
Allen Pu, Ted Randall, Brian Walsh 

London 

Arthur Barlow, Managing Director and Senior Portfolio Manager 

Akbar Ali, Senior Portfolio Manager 

Portfolio Managers: Paul Foley, Alexander Fridman,      
Didier Haenecour, Nathan Lacaze, Adam Ward 

Sydney 

Graham Lennon, Head of International Portfolio  
Management and Senior Portfolio Manager 

Portfolio Managers: Marcus Axthelm, Murray Cockerell, 

Stephen Garth, Damien Koch, Robert Ness, Slava Platkov, 
Gillian Wilson, Craig Wright 

Singapore 

Portfolio Managers: Jason Ha, Stephen Quance 

Tokyo 

Portfolio Manager: Kotaro Hama 
 
 

Austin 

Carl Snyder, Senior Trader 

David LaRusso, Senior Trader 

Christian Gunther, Senior Trader 

Traders: 
Kipp Cummins, Erhan Oktay, Chris Rink,  
Scott Van Pelt 

 

Santa Monica 

Henry Gray, Head of Global Equity Trading 

Ryan Wiley, Senior Trader 

Traders: 
Claudette Higdon, Le Tran 

 

London 

John Romiza, Head of International Equity Trading 
Mark Butterworth, Senior Trader 

Traders: 
William Letheren, Frances Ritter, James Simpson 
 

Sydney 

Jason Lapping, Head of Asia Pacific Trading 

Sam Willis, Senior Trader 

Traders: 
Richard Mar, David Vrolyk 
 

Singapore 

Trader: 

Jonathan Smith 

 

Tokyo 

Trader: 

Hayato Yonemori 
 
 

As of July 17, 2014 

1. Dimensional Fund Advisors LP Investment Committee 

Locations with offices operated by Dimensional. "Dimensional" refers to the Dimensional separate but affiliated entities generally, rather than to one particular entity. These entities are Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, Dimensional Fund 

Advisors Ltd., DFA Australia Limited, Dimensional Fund Advisors Canada ULC, Dimensional Fund Advisors Pte. Ltd., and Dimensional Japan Ltd.  

Experienced Teams Ensure Consistency 
 High degree of practitioner’s knowledge and experience across market cycles 

4 

Don’t forget to 

change the 

effective date 



Putting Research into Practice 

5 

Research 

Portfolio Design 

Implementation 

• Structure portfolios that seek to accurately capture  

those dimensions 

• Integrate known dimensions that seek to increase 

consistency of expected returns  

• Ensure diversification and allow for effective execution 

• Maintain continuous focus 

• Manage competing premiums 

• Minimize unnecessary turnover and trading costs 

• Manage risks 

• Identify sensible dimensions that are backed by data  
and allow for cost-effective pursuit of higher  
expected returns  



Diversification does not eliminate the risk of market loss. 1. Relative price as measured by the price-to-book ratio; value stocks are those with lower price-to-book ratios.  

2. Profitability is a measure of current profitability, based on information from individual companies’ income statements.  

Dimensions of Expected Returns 
Expected returns are driven by prices investors pay and cash flows they expect to receive 

To be considered a  

dimension of expected return,   

a premium must be: 

• Sensible 

• Persistent across time periods 

• Pervasive across markets 

• Robust to alternative 

specifications 

• Cost-effective to capture in 

well-diversified portfolios 

 

Company Size  
Small cap premium – small vs large companies 

Market  
Equity premium – stocks vs bonds 

Relative Price1  
Value premium – value vs growth companies 

Profitability2  
Profitability premium – high vs low profitability companies 

#30605-0113 

6 



Annualized compound returns (%) in US dollars. Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense scaled by book.  

Indices are not available for direct investment. Their performance does not reflect the expenses associated with the management of an actual portfolio. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. Index returns 

are not representative of actual portfolios and do not reflect costs and fees associated with an actual investment. Actual returns may be lower. See “Index Descriptions” in the appendix for descriptions of Dimensional and 

Fama/French index data. The S&P data are provided by Standard & Poor’s Index Services Group. MSCI data © MSCI 2014, all rights reserved.  

Dimensions of Expected Returns 
Illustrative index performance 

7 

#17867-1011 

If this slide is  

used in GIPS  

deck: 
Add this disclosure  

to the top of the  

footnote: 

 
Information is supplemental 

to the compliant 

presentation(s) of the 

composite(s). See 

Appendix. 

HIGH 

R
e
la

ti
v
e
 P

ri
ce

 
P

ro
fi

ta
b

il
it

y
 

S
iz

e
 

1928–2013 

1996–2013 

1975–2013 

EMERGING MARKETS STOCKS US STOCKS NON-US DEVELOPED MARKETS STOCKS 

S&P 500  
Index 

Dimensional 
US Small 
Cap Index  

12.33 
9.78 

Fama/French  
International  
Growth Index 

Fama/French  
International  
Value Index 

15.11 

9.16 

4.23 

Dimensional  
Emerging  
Markets High  
Profitability Index 

Dimensional  
Emerging  
Markets Low 
Profitability Index 

SMALL LARGE SMALL LARGE SMALL LARGE 

LOW HIGH 

LOW 

LOW HIGH LOW HIGH 

HIGH LOW HIGH LOW 

10.63 

1928–2013 

Fama/French  
US Growth 
Index 

Fama/French  
US Value  
Index 

12.62 
8.94 

1970–2013 

MSCI World  
ex USA Index 
(gross div.)  

Dimensional  
Intl. Small  
Cap Index 

15.07 

10.06 

1964–2013 

Dimensional  
US High 
Profitability  
Index 

Dimensional  
US Low 
Profitability  
Index 

12.98 
8.26 

MSCI  
Emerging  
Markets Index 
(gross div.)  

Dimensional  
Emerging 
Markets Small  
Cap Index 

12.78 11.11 

1989–2013 

1992–2013 

9.03 

3.88 

Dimensional  
International High  
Profitability Index 

Dimensional  
International Low  
Profitability Index 

1989–2013 

Fama/French  
Emerging  
Markets Growth  
Index 

Fama/French  
Emerging  
Markets Value  
Index 

15.08 

10.06 

Animated 



 

1. Large cap companies defined as the top 1,000 by market cap. 

Conceptual example, provided for informational purposes only.  

Portfolio Construction:  
Security Selection and Weighting 

• Focuses on large cap 

companies.1  

• Increased focus on securities  

with higher expected returns 

(higher profitability, lower 

relative price, and mid  

market cap). 

 

 

 

PROPOSED  DFA LARGE CAP STRATEGY (SIMULATED) 
 

8 

S
M

A
L
L
 

LA
R

G
E

 

S
IZ

E
 

HIGH 
PROFITABIL ITY  

LOW 

HIGH LOW 

RELATIVE  PR ICE  



SIMULATED DATA 

Holdings are subject to change. Russell data copyright Russell Investment Group 1995-2014, all rights reserved.  
1. NC represents utilities, REITs and securities with no or negative book value.  

Proposed DFA Large Cap Strategy (Simulated) 
Size and Style Allocations vs. Russell 1000 Index 

9 

#17595-1011 

NC1 Growth  
(Low BtM) 

2 3 Value 
(High BtM) 

0.5% 6.6% 11.1% 21.3% 22.4% 61.9% 

0.3% 2.1% 4.0% 9.6% 6.4% 22.3% 

0.1% 0.8% 2.2% 7.4% 5.3% 15.8% 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

0.9% 9.5% 17.2% 38.3% 34.1% 100.00% 

S
iz

e
 

Small 

Large 

4 

3 

2 

NC1 Growth  
(Low BtM) 

2 3 Value 
(High BtM) 

4.6% 17.1% 19.0% 16.7% 17.9% 75.3% 

2.3% 4.3% 3.1% 3.8% 3.6% 17.3% 

1.1% 1.3% 1.0% 1.8% 1.6% 6.8% 

0.1% 0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.4% 0.7% 

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

8.2% 22.7% 23.2% 22.5% 23.5% 100.00% 

S
iz

e
 

Small 

Large 

4 

3 

2 



SIMULATED DATA 

Holdings are subject to change. Russell data copyright Russell Investment Group 1995-2014, all rights reserved.  

1. NC represents utilities, REITs and securities with no or negative book value.  

Proposed DFA Large Cap Strategy (Simulated) 
Profitability and Style Allocations vs. Russell 1000 Index 

 

10 

#17595-1011 

NC1 Growth  
(Low BtM) 

2 3 Value 
(High BtM) 

0.0% 6.8% 4.5% 12.0% 5.0% 28.4% 

0.1% 1.9% 9.2% 13.8% 10.2% 35.2% 

0.1% 0.5% 2.9% 9.9% 9.2% 22.6% 

0.2% 0.2% 0.6% 2.5% 9.7% 13.2% 

0.5% 0.1% 0% 0.1% 0% 0.6% 

0.9% 9.5% 17.2% 38.3% 34.1% 100.00% 

P
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 

NC1 

High 

Low 

2 

3 

NC1 Growth  
(Low BtM) 

2 3 Value 
(High BtM) 

0.3% 13.0% 3.6% 3.6% 1.3% 21.9% 

0.3% 4.6% 9.9% 6.1% 3.4% 24.3% 

0.7% 2.9% 6.4% 8.1% 5.4% 23.4% 

5.1% 1.9% 3.3% 4.7% 13.3% 28.3% 

1.8% 0.2% 0% 0% 0% 2.1% 

8.2% 22.7% 23.2% 22.5% 23.5% 100.00% 

P
ro

fi
ta

b
ili

ty
 

NC1 

High 

Low 

2 

3 



Rules seek to exclude from purchase securities that Dimensional determines to fall within these categories. This is not a complete list of all possible exclusions/considerations.  

1. Not excluded from all strategies. 

Exclusions and Considerations 
Refining the universe 

11 

#21234-0112 

Structural 

• REITs1 

• Regulated investment 

companies 

• Highly regulated utilities1 

 

 

 

Event-Driven 

• Recent IPO 

• Merger or target  

of acquisition 

• Upcoming 

announcements 

• Share classes with 

foreign restrictions and 

with significant premiums 

• Bankruptcy 

• Extraordinary events 

 

Ongoing 

• Listing requirements 

• Limited operating history 

• Insufficient data 

• Insufficient float  

or liquidity 

 

 

 



Charts for illustrative purposes only. 

Managing Momentum  
We incorporate momentum when making buy and sell decisions 

12 

Stock returns may exhibit 

momentum: 

• Stocks with large relative 

underperformance tend  

to have negative excess  

returns in the next period. 

• Stocks with large relative 

outperformance tend to  

have positive excess returns  

in the next period. 

#17600-1011 

PAST FUTURE PAST FUTURE TODAY TODAY 

R
E

L
A

T
IV

E
 R

E
T

U
R

N
 

Delay buys of  
securities otherwise 
eligible for purchase. 

Delay sells of  
securities otherwise 
eligible for sale. 

NEGATIVE MOMENTUM POSITIVE MOMENTUM 



Trading Costs Matter 
Our approach helps minimize the total costs of trading 

13 

#17600-1011 

Commissions,  
custody fees,  
exchange fees 

Bid/ask spread,  
market impact 

We deal with explicit costs 

by keeping commissions  

as low as possible without 

sacrificing overall execution. 

Trading Costs = + Implicit Costs Explicit Costs 

Implicit costs can be  

hidden—and potentially 

large. We apply a trading 

philosophy that emphasizes 

patience and flexibility. 

Low turnover by  

design keeps overall  

trading costs down. 



SIMULATED DATA 

Numbers may not total 100% due to rounding. Russell data copyright Russell Investment Group 1995-2014, all rights reserved.  

Sector Allocations (Simulated) 
Data as of June 30, 2014 

14 

#17600-1011 

Proposed DFA Large 

Cap Strategy Russell 1000 Index Russell 1000 Value Index

Portfolio Weights (%)

Energy 18.4% 9.9% 13.8%

Materials 5.6% 3.8% 3.4%

Industrials 13.9% 11.1% 10.1%

Consumer Discretionary 14.6% 12.4% 6.4%

Consumer Staples 6.9% 8.5% 6.9%

Health Care 8.9% 13.2% 13.2%

Financials 12.5% 13.6% 24.0%

Information Technology 13.8% 18.9% 9.3%

Telecommunication Services 4.7% 2.4% 2.3%

Utilities 0.6% 3.0% 6.0%

REITS - 3.2% 4.6%



SIMULATED DATA 

Holdings are subject to change. Russell data copyright Russell Investment Group 1995-2014, all rights reserved.  

Characteristics (Simulated) 
Data as of June 30, 2014 

15 

#17595-1011 

Proposed DFA Large Cap 

Strategy Russell 1000 Index Russell 1000 Value Index

MARKET CHARACTERISTICS

Eligible Universe $19,313,761 $19,783,477 $9,820,864

Number of Holdings 969 1,032 691 

SIZE CHARACTERISTICS

Wtd. Average Market Cap (millions) 96,196 111,054 108,895 

Median Market Cap (millions) 2,924 7,350 6,947 

VALUATION CHARACTERISTICS

Aggregate Price-to-Book 2.12 2.34 1.61 

PROFITABILITY CHARACTERISTICS

Weighted Average Profitability 0.39 0.37 0.25 



Simulated strategy returns based on a model/back-tested simulation. This is not a strategy managed by Dimensional. The performance was achieved with the retroactive 

application of a model designed with the benefit of hindsight; it does not represent actual investment performance. Back-tested model performance is hypothetical (it does not 

reflect trading in actual accounts) and is provided for informational purposes only. The securities held in the model may differ significantly from those held in client accounts. 

Model performance may not reflect the impact that economic and market factors might have had on the advisor's decision making if the advisor were actually managing client 

money. This strategy was not available for investment in the time periods depicted. Actual management of this type of simulated strategy may result in lower returns than the 

back-tested results achieved with the benefit of hindsight. Past performance (including hypothetical past performance) does not guarantee future or actual results. The simulated 

performance shown is "gross performance," which includes the reinvestment of dividends but does not reflect the deduction of investment advisory fees and other expenses. To 

account for trading costs, however, the simulated performance does reflect the deduction of an assumed brokerage fee of 5 basis points using an estimated turnover number.  A 

client's investment returns will be reduced by the advisory fees and other expenses it may incur in the management of its advisory account. Dimensional's advisory fees are 

described in Part 2A of Dimensional's Form ADV.  Indices are not available for direct investment. Their performance does not reflect the expenses associated with management of 

an actual strategy.  
Russell data copyright Russell Investment Group 1995-2014, all rights reserved.  Indices are not available for direct investment.  

Performance (Simulated) 
Data as of December 31, 2013 

16 

#17595-1011 

Annualized Returns
1
 (%) 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years 15 Years 20 Years

Since 1/79

Annualized 

Return

Proposed DFA Large Cap Strategy 36.02 16.47 20.35 9.12 7.77 11.50 13.84

Russell 1000 Index 33.11 16.30 18.59 7.78 5.08 9.38 12.03

Russell 1000 Value Index 32.53 16.06 16.67 7.58 6.23 9.71 12.51



Calendar Year 

Returns (%)

Proposed DFA 

Large Cap 

Strategy Russell 1000 Index

Russell 1000 Value 

Index

1997 33.3% 32.8% 35.2%

1998 19.8% 27.0% 15.6%

1999 11.9% 20.9% 7.4%

2000 2.9% -7.8% 7.0%

2001 0.9% -12.4% -5.6%

2002 -16.4% -21.7% -15.5%

2003 32.2% 29.9% 30.0%

2004 14.9% 11.4% 16.5%

2005 7.8% 6.3% 7.0%

2006 16.9% 15.5% 22.2%

2007 3.2% 5.8% -0.2%

2008 -36.5% -37.6% -36.8%

2009 33.2% 28.4% 19.7%

2010 20.0% 16.1% 15.5%

2011 0.8% 1.5% 0.4%

2012 15.3% 16.4% 17.5%

2013 36.0% 33.1% 32.5%

Simulated strategy returns based on a model/back-tested simulation. This is not a strategy managed by Dimensional. The performance was achieved with the retroactive 

application of a model designed with the benefit of hindsight; it does not represent actual investment performance. Back-tested model performance is hypothetical (it does not 

reflect trading in actual accounts) and is provided for informational purposes only. The securities held in the model may differ significantly from those held in client accounts. 

Model performance may not reflect the impact that economic and market factors might have had on the advisor's decision making if the advisor were actually managing client 

money. This strategy was not available for investment in the time periods depicted. Actual management of this type of simulated strategy may result in lower returns than the 

back-tested results achieved with the benefit of hindsight. Past performance (including hypothetical past performance) does not guarantee future or actual results. The simulated 

performance shown is "gross performance," which includes the reinvestment of dividends but does not reflect the deduction of investment advisory fees and other expenses. To 

account for trading costs, however, the simulated performance does reflect the deduction of an assumed brokerage fee of 5 basis points using an estimated turnover number.  A 

client's investment returns will be reduced by the advisory fees and other expenses it may incur in the management of its advisory account. Dimensional's advisory fees are 

described in Part 2A of Dimensional's Form ADV.  Indices are not available for direct investment. Their performance does not reflect the expenses associated with management of 

an actual strategy. Russell data copyright Russell Investment Group 1995-2014, all rights reserved.  Indices are not available for direct investment.  

Performance (Simulated) 
Data as of December 31, 2013 

17 

#17595-1011 

Calendar Year 

Returns (%)

Proposed DFA 

Large Cap 

Strategy Russell 1000 Index

Russell 1000 Value 

Index

1979 27.1% 22.4% 20.5%

1980 27.7% 32.0% 24.4%

1981 -0.3% -5.1% 1.3%

1982 21.5% 20.2% 20.0%

1983 27.3% 22.1% 28.3%

1984 8.7% 4.8% 10.1%

1985 32.4% 32.2% 31.5%

1986 19.1% 17.9% 20.0%

1987 1.0% 2.9% 0.5%

1988 23.7% 17.2% 23.2%

1989 27.3% 30.4% 25.2%

1990 -12.6% -4.2% -8.1%

1991 36.3% 33.0% 24.6%

1992 14.8% 9.0% 13.8%

1993 13.5% 10.2% 18.1%

1994 0.6% 0.4% -2.0%

1995 42.0% 37.8% 38.4%

1996 25.9% 22.4% 21.6%



Appendix 

 



Indices are not available for direct investment. Past performance is not a guarantee of future results. 

1. Profitability is a measure of current profitability, based on information from individual companies’ income statements.  

Based on rolling annualized returns. Rolling multi-year periods overlap and are not independent. This statistical dependence must be considered when assessing the reliability of long-horizon return differences.  

US Market vs. T-Bills: US Market is S&P 500 Index. US Bills is One-Month US Treasury Bills. There are 871 overlapping 15-year periods, 931 overlapping 10-year periods, 991 overlapping 5-year periods, and 

1,039 overlapping 1-year periods. US Value vs. Growth: US Value is Fama/French US Value Index. US Growth is Fama/French US Growth Index. There are 871 overlapping 15-year periods, 931 overlapping 10-

year periods, 991 overlapping 5-year periods, and 1,039 overlapping 1-year periods. US Small vs. Large: US Small is Dimensional US Small Cap Index. US Large is S&P 500 Index. There are 860 overlapping 15-

year periods, 920 overlapping 10-year periods, 980 overlapping 5-year periods, and 1,028 overlapping 1-year periods. US High Profitability vs. Low Profitability: US High is Dimensional US High Profitability Index. 

US Low is Dimensional US Low Profitability Index. There are 427 overlapping 15-year periods, 487 overlapping 10-year periods, 547 overlapping 5-year periods, and 595 overlapping 1-year periods. Dimensional 

Index data compiled by Dimensional. Fama/French data provided by Fama/French. The S&P data are provided by Standard & Poor's Index Services Group. 

Historical Performance of Premiums over  
Rolling Periods 
 US Markets 

 

19 

Small beat large 96% of the 
time. 

1-Year

5-Year

10-Year

15-Year

MARKET beat T-BILLS 

Overlapping Periods: July 1926–December 2013 

95% of the time 

84% of the time 

75% of the time 

69% of the time 1-Year

5-Year

10-Year

15-Year

VALUE beat GROWTH 

Overlapping Periods: July 1926–December 2013 

95% of the time 

88% of the time 

76% of the time 

60% of the time 

1-Year

5-Year

10-Year

15-Year

SMALL beat LARGE 

Overlapping Periods: June 1927–December 2013 

82% of the time 

72% of the time 

64% of the time 

58% of the time 1-Year

5-Year

10-Year

15-Year

HIGH PROFITABILITY1 beat LOW PROFITABILITY 

Overlapping Periods: July 1963–December 2013 

100% of the time 

100% of the time 

93% of the time 

71% of the time 

If this slide is  

used in GIPS  

deck: 
Add this disclosure  

to the top of the  

footnote: 

 
Information is  

supplemental to the  

compliant presentation(s)  

of the composite(s).  

See Appendix. 



Market premium: Fama/French Total US Market Index minus one-month US Treasury Bills. Size premium: Dimensional US Small Cap Index minus the Fama/French Total US Market Index. Value premium: 

Fama/French US Value Index minus the Fama/French Total US Market Index. Profitability premium: Dimensional US High Profitability Index minus the Fama/French Total US Market Index. Profitability is 

measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization minus interest expense, scaled by book. Dimensional indices  use CRSP and Compustat data. Fama/French indices provided by Ken French. 

Index descriptions available upon request. Indices are not available for direct investment. Their performance does not reflect the expenses associated with the management of an actual portfolio. Past 

performance is no guarantee of future results.  

Yearly Observations of Excess Returns 

20 

#17867-1011 

M
A

R
K

E
T
  

m
in

u
s 

T
-B

IL
L
S
 

S
M

A
L
L
 C

A
P

 
 m

in
u
s 

M
A

R
K

E
T
 

V
A

L
U

E
 

 m
in

u
s 

M
A

R
K

E
T
 

H
IG

H
 P

R
O

F
IT

A
B

IL
IT

Y
 

m
in

u
s 

M
A

R
K

E
T
 

US Markets 

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

1964 1971 1978 1985 1992 1999 2006 2013

R
e
tu

rn
 P

re
m

iu
m

 

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

1964 1971 1978 1985 1992 1999 2006 2013

R
e
tu

rn
 P

re
m

iu
m

 

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

1964 1971 1978 1985 1992 1999 2006 2013

R
e
tu

rn
 P

re
m

iu
m

 

-40%

-20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

1964 1971 1978 1985 1992 1999 2006 2013

R
e
tu

rn
 P

re
m

iu
m

 



 

 

Index Descriptions 

21 

The Dimensional Indices have been retrospectively calculated by Dimensional Fund Advisors LP and did not exist prior to their index inceptions dates. Accordingly, results shown during the periods prior to each Index’s index inception date 

do not represent actual returns of the Index. Other periods selected may have different results, including losses. Backtested index performance is hypothetical and is provided for informational purposes only to indicate historical 

performance had the index been calculated over the relevant time periods. Backtested performance results assume the reinvestment of dividends and capital gains. 

Dimensional US Small Cap Index was created by Dimensional in March 2007 and is 

compiled by Dimensional. It represents a market-capitalization-weighted index of 

securities of the smallest US companies whose market capitalization falls in the 

lowest 8% of the total market capitalization of the Eligible Market. The Eligible 

Market is composed of securities of US companies traded on the NYSE, NYSE MKT 

(formerly AMEX), and Nasdaq Global Market. Exclusions: Non-US companies, REITs, 

UITs, and Investment Companies. From January 1975 to the present, the index also 

excludes companies with the lowest profitability and highest relative price within the 

small cap universe. Profitability is measured as Operating Income before 

Depreciation and Amortization minus Interest Expense scaled by Book. Source: 

CRSP and Compustat. The index monthly returns are computed as the simple 

average of the monthly returns of 12 sub-indices, each one reconstituted once a 

year at the end of a different month of the year. The calculation methodology for 

the Dimensional US Small Cap Index was amended on January 1, 2014, to include 

direct profitability as a factor in selecting securities for inclusion in the index. 

Dimensional US High Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in January 

2014 and represents an index consisting of US companies. It is compiled by 

Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability groups from high to 

low. Each group represents one-third of the market capitalization. Similarly, stocks 

are sorted into three relative price groups. The intersections of the three profitability 

groups and the three relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on 

profitability and relative price. The index represents the average return of the three 

high-profitability subgroups. It is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured 

as Operating Income before Depreciation and Amortization minus Interest Expense 

scaled by Book. Source: CRSP and Compustat. 

 

 

 

 

 

Dimensional US Low Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in January 

2014 and represents an index consisting of US companies. It is compiled by 

Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability groups from high to 

low. Each group represents one-third of the market capitalization. Similarly, stocks 

are sorted into three relative price groups. The intersections of the three profitability 

groups and the three relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on 

profitability and relative price. The index represents the average return of the three 

low-profitability subgroups. It is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured 

as Operating Income before Depreciation and Amortization minus Interest Expense 

scaled by Book. Source: CRSP and Compustat. 

Dimensional International Small Cap Index was created by Dimensional in April 

2008 and is compiled by Dimensional. July 1981 - December 1993: it Includes non-

US developed securities in the bottom 10% of market capitalization in each eligible 

country. All securities are market capitalization weighted. Each country is capped at 

50%. Rebalanced semiannually. January 1994 - Present: Market-capitalization-

weighted index of small company securities in the eligible markets excluding those 

with the lowest profitability and highest relative price within the small cap universe. 

Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization 

minus interest expense scaled by book. The index monthly returns are computed as 

the simple average of the monthly returns of four sub-indices, each one 

reconstituted once a year at the end of a different quarter of the year. Prior to July 

1981, the index is 50% UK and 50% Japan. The calculation methodology for the 

Dimensional International Small Cap Index was amended on January 1, 2014, to 

include direct profitability as a factor in selecting securities for inclusion in the index. 

 

 

 



Index Descriptions 

22 

The Dimensional Indices have been retrospectively calculated by Dimensional Fund Advisors LP and did not exist prior to their index inceptions dates. Accordingly, results shown during the periods prior to each 

Index’s index inception date do not represent actual returns of the Index. Other periods selected may have different results, including losses. Backtested index performance is hypothetical and is provided for 

informational purposes only to indicate historical performance had the index been calculated over the relevant time periods. Backtested performance results assume the reinvestment of dividends and capital 

gains. 

Dimensional International Low Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in 

January 2013 and represents an index consisting of non-US Developed companies. 

It is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability 

groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 

capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 

price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 

relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 

The index represents the average return of the three low-profitability subgroups. 

The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as Operating 

Income before Depreciation and Amortization minus Interest Expense scaled by 

Book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional International High Profitability Index was created by Dimensional in 

January 2013 and represents an index consisting of non-US Developed companies. 

It is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three profitability 

groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 

capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 

price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 

relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 

The index represents the average return of the three high-profitability subgroups. 

The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as Operating 

Income before Depreciation and Amortization minus Interest Expense scaled by 

Book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional Emerging Markets Low Profitability Index was created by 

Dimensional in April 2013 and represents an index consisting of emerging markets 

companies and is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three 

profitability groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 

capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 

price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 

relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 

The index represents the average return of the three low-profitability subgroups. 

The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as Operating 

Income before Depreciation and Amortization minus Interest Expense scaled by 

Book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional Emerging Markets High Profitability Index was created by 

Dimensional in April 2013 and represents an index consisting of emerging markets 

companies and is compiled by Dimensional. Dimensional sorts stocks into three 

profitability groups from high to low. Each group represents one-third of the market 

capitalization of each eligible country. Similarly, stocks are sorted into three relative 

price groups. The intersections of the three profitability groups and the three 

relative price groups yield nine subgroups formed on profitability and relative price. 

The index represents the average return of the three high-profitability subgroups. 

The index is rebalanced twice per year. Profitability is measured as Operating 

Income before Depreciation and Amortization minus Interest Expense scaled by 

Book. Source: Bloomberg. 

Dimensional Emerging Markets Small Cap Index was created by Dimensional in 

April 2008 and is compiled by Dimensional. January 1989 - December 1993: 

Fama/French Emerging Markets Small Cap Index. January 1994 - Present: 

Dimensional Emerging Markets Small Index Composition: Market-capitalization-

weighted index of small company securities in the eligible markets excluding those 

with the lowest profitability and highest relative price within the small cap universe. 

Profitability is measured as operating income before depreciation and amortization 

minus interest expense scaled by book. The index monthly returns are computed as 

the simple average of the monthly returns of four sub-indices, each one 

reconstituted once a year at the end of a different quarter of the year.  

Source: Bloomberg. The calculation methodology for the Dimensional Emerging 

Markets Small Cap Index was amended on January 1, 2014, to include direct 

profitability as a factor in selecting securities for inclusion in the index. 

 



Index Descriptions 

23 

Results shown during periods prior to each Index’s index inception date do not represent actual returns of the respective index. Other periods selected may have different results, including losses. Backtested 

index performance is hypothetical and is provided for informational purposes only to indicate historical performance had the index been calculated over the relevant time periods. Backtested performance results 

assume the reinvestment of dividends and capital gains. 

Fama/French US Value Index Provided by Fama/French from CRSP securities data. 

Includes the lower 30% in price-to-book of NYSE securities (plus NYSE Amex 

equivalents since July 1962 and Nasdaq equivalents since 1973). 

Fama/French US Growth Index Provided by Fama/French from CRSP securities 

data. Includes the higher 30% in price-to-book of NYSE securities (plus NYSE Amex 

equivalents since July 1962 and Nasdaq equivalents since 1973). 

Fama/French International Value Index: 2008–present: Provided by Fama/French 

from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy of MSCI EAFE countries in the 

lower 30% price-to-book range. 1975–2007: Provided by Fama/French from MSCI 

securities data. 

Fama/French International Growth Index: 2008–present: Provided by Fama/French 

from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy of MSCI EAFE countries in the 

higher 30% price-to-book range. 1975–2007: Provided by Fama/French from MSCI 

securities data. 

Fama/French Emerging Markets Value Index: 2009–present: Provided by 

Fama/French from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy using IFC 

investable universe countries. Companies in the lower 30% price-to-book range; 

companies weighted by float-adjusted market cap; countries weighted by country 

float-adjusted market cap; rebalanced monthly. 1989–2008: Provided by 

Fama/French from IFC securities data. IFC data provided by International  

Finance Corporation. 

Fama/French Emerging Markets Growth Index : 2009–present: Provided by 

Fama/French from Bloomberg securities data. Simulated strategy using IFC 

investable universe countries. Companies in the higher 30% price-to-book range; 

companies weighted by float-adjusted market cap; countries weighted by country 

float-adjusted market cap; rebalanced monthly. 1989–2008: Provided by 

Fama/French from IFC securities data. IFC data provided by International  

Finance Corporation.  

 



Presenters’ Biographies 

24 

Grady Smith 
Senior Portfolio Manager and Vice President 

Grady M. Smith is a senior portfolio manager and vice president at Dimensional, and a member of our Investment Strategies Group. He has 

general oversight responsibilities for a broad array of global equity and fixed income strategies. His role also includes communicating with 

clients and others on how Dimensional's portfolios are designed, implemented, and operated, and the principles and academic research on 

which the firm is founded. Grady's experience at Dimensional includes portfolio responsibilities and managing US and global equity mutual 

funds and separate accounts, as well as tax-managed equity portfolios. 

Prior to joining Dimensional in 2001, Grady spent more than twenty years as a management consultant, most recently with Mercer. As a 

principal in their Los Angeles office, he was a lead consultant for some of the firm's largest accounts. Before Mercer, Grady held a similar 

role with KPMG, where he also served as a national consulting skills instructor, training new consulting staff from throughout the US. 

Grady earned a BA in economics from Stanford University in 1978 and an MBA from the UCLA Anderson School of Management in 2001 

(Harold M. Williams Fellow), and is a CFA Charterholder. 

 

Savina Rizova 
Vice President 

Savina applies a background in finance to research projects that Dimensional undertakes to improve the design and execution of new and 

existing strategies. She also examines a variety of empirical research questions. Prior to obtaining her PhD, Savina worked in the Research 

group at Dimensional. She conducted quantitative analysis used to explain strategies and performance to clients. Savina is also a member 

of the Investment Policy Committee. 

Savina completed her PhD in finance at the University of Chicago Booth School of Business and holds an MBA from the University of 

Chicago Booth School of Business as well as a BA in economics and mathematics from Dartmouth College. 

 



 

 

 

 

TAB 3 – OPERF REAL ESTATE REVIEW 

 



OPERF Real Estate Portfolio  

2014 Plan and Review 

Anthony Breault, Senior Real Estate Investment Officer 

September 24, 2014 

 



New Investments & Pipeline 

2013 /2014 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 

New Investments /Commitments 

 

 2013 

• Lone Star Fund VIII ($187mm – May) 

• Amstar Joint Venture ($200mm – May) 

• KTR Industrial Fund III ($100mm – June) 

• Lone Star Real Estate Fund III ($300mm – Sep) 

• Rockpoint Core Plus Fund ($100mm – Dec) 

 

 2014 YTD through September 30 

• DivcoWest Fund IV ($100mm – Feb) 

• Talmage Total Return Partners ($100mm – Feb) 

• Waterton Residential Fund XII ($100mm – Feb) 

• Lone Star Fund IX ($300mm – March) 

• Och-Ziff Real Estate Fund III ($125mm – May) 

• Lionstone Joint Venture ($200mm – July) 

• Landmark Real Estate Secondaries Fund VII ($100mm- Sep) 

 

Potential Investments: 

 

 2014 Pipeline 

Mezz/Private Debt Fund (Value Add) 

Alternative / Niche Real Estate Fund (Value Add) 

Debt Origination Platform / Loan Book (Opportunistic) 

2 



Commitments and Cash Flows 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 3 

  2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Capital Contributions ($1,100) ($1,577) ($1,126) ($1,746) ($863) ($781) ($920) ($1,199) ($439) ($742) 

Capital Distribributions $1,150 $1,587 $844 $422 $286 $745 $626 $1,274 $752 $1,010 

Net Cash Flows $51 $10 ($281) ($1,324) ($577) ($36) ($293) $75 $312 $268 



Portfolio 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 

Current Portfolio Net Asset Value  $7.85 billion (3/31/2014)  

     11.21% of Total Fund  

     $7.69 billion (cash adj 6/30/2014)  

    

Target Allocation to Real Estate  $8.75 billion 

     12.5% of Total Fund 

 

Total Number of Investments   85 (36 active relationships) 

     

  ** Concentration: Top 10 relationships comprise 62% of portfolio NAV ** 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

Allocation of Unfunded Commitments 



Portfolio Performance (6/30/2014) 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 5 

YTD 1 YEAR 3 YEAR 5 YEAR 10 YEAR 

Total Real Estate Portfolio 7.04 12.68 11.90 10.95 9.78 

NCREIF Property Index (quarter lag) 5.34 11.18 11.69 7.89 8.65 

Excess 1.69 1.50 0.21 3.06 1.13 

Outperforming for all stated time periods 

*Figures above are one quarter lag (3/31/2014) for private portfolio & 6/30/2014 for REIT holdings  



Sub-Portfolio Weightings 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 6 

Portfolio   Allocation Range  Target  Actual 
 

Core (Private)         25-35%  30%  26.5% 

REITs          15-25%  20%  20.8% 

Value Added         15-25%  20%  19.3% 

Opportunistic         20-40%  30%  33.3% 

as of 3/31/2014 



Aggregate Portfolio Composition 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 7 

Property Types Diversification 

21% 

4% 

16% 

21% 

17% 

9% 

2% 
9% 

1% US East Coast

US Midwest

US South

US West

US Diverse

Europe

Americas (non-US)

Asia

Other

Geographic Diversification 

 Domestic tilt: 79% U.S. exposure 

 

 International exposure by MSCI Market Classification: 

• 95% Developed 

• 5% Emerging 

• 0% Frontier 



Core Real Estate Composition 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 8 

Property Type Diversification 

Geographic Diversification 

as of 3/31/2014 



Value Add/Opportunistic Composition 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 9 

Property Type Diversification 

Geographic Diversification 

as of 3/31/2014 



Portfolio Structure / Relationships 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 10 

Total OPERF Real Estate -  $7.86Bn 

One Year Return 10.5% 

NCREIF Index  11.2%  

Core Value Add Opportunistic REITs 

$2.08 Bn 

1 Year Return: 10.5% 

$1.63 Bn 

Domestic 1 Year Return: 5.2% 

Ex-US 1 Year Return:     0.92% 

$1.52 Bn 

1 Year Return: 13.1% 

$2.62 Bn 

1 Year Return: 14.6% 

Number of Relationships / Managers 

Clarion 

Lincoln 

Regency 

GID 

RREEF 

Talmage 

6 

LaSalle 

Cohen & Steers 

Woodbourne 

Morgan Stanley 

EII 

5 

Alpha Asia 

Amstar 

Beacon 

CBRE 

DivcoWest 

Hines 

KTR 

Lionstone 

Pac Trust 

Prologis 

Rockwood 

Vornado 

Waterton 

Western National 

14 

Aetos 

Angelo Gordon 

Blackstone 

Canyon Captial 

GI Partners 

Fortress 

Rockpoint 

IL&FS 

Lone Star 

Starwood 

VBI 

11 

as of 3/31/2014 



Portfolio Vision: Initial Thoughts & Evolution 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 11 

?? 

               ??  
• Reallocate to Core/Value Add? 

• Maintain tactical exposure & 

diversifiers Revise down! 

•  4-6 Managers 

Perhaps not feasible? 

Revise down! 

• 1-3 Managers 



Real Estate Portfolio - Initiatives 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 12 

 Staffing: 

• Filled Real Estate Investment Officer vacancy (Austin Carmichael – Feb 2014) 

• Re-hiring for Real Estate Coordinator – in process 

• Assessment: portfolio is understaffed given its size, geographic coverage, 

     complexity, and partnership demands which are particularly acute in an economic 

     recovery when greater focus on due diligence and underwriting new  

     partnership structures is required.  

 

 REITs 

• Staff & consultant commencing project for determining: 

o long-term role of REIT exposure within real estate portfolio 

o potential portfolio composition if a shift to greater private market exposure is 

     recommended  

• Timeline: early 2015 

 

  Administrative 

• Staff reviewing options for portfolio modeling / analytics interfaces to provide 

     much-needed analytic capabilities. 

• Held first Oregon Roundtable session (small leap for investing, bigger leap for LPs). 

 



Real Estate Portfolio - Initiatives 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 13 

 Pipeline considerations: 

• Maintain portfolio’s Value Add tilt 

• Continued focus on sourcing and structuring long-term Strategic Partnerships 

•  Strategic Partnerships should allow for scalable deployment of capital with greater 

      capital alignment and reduced fee-leakage 

 

 Separate Account (JV) Initiatives: 

• Mixed-use developer / operator, nationally diversified (Value Add) 

• Multifamily (Value Add) to complement the Core GID mandate 

• Retail (Value Add, necessity/grocer anchor focus) to complement Core Regency 

     mandate 

• Pan-European (retail / industrial focus, Value Add); early stages of exploration 

 

• Fund Initiatives: 

• Re-ups of proven / valued managers for continued long term partnerships 

• Selective new relationships; best-in-class firms / portfolio diversification needs 

• Continued culling of non-strategic, non-long term relationships 

 

 



Real Estate Portfolio - Compliance 

Real Estate Portfolio 2014 Plan and Review 14 

 No portions of portfolio out of compliance, including: 

• Debt / LTV; 

• Appraisals; or 

• Portfolio allocations / bandwidths. 

 

 Terminations  

• None YTD or 2013 

• One potential termination pending review 

 

 RREEF America II 

• As reported in 2013 review, redeemed $80MM of the remaining $120MM 

• Countercyclical consideration (core “fully priced”) 

• Maintaining remaining exposure as a diversified & quality open-ended 

             fund holding  

 



 

 

 

 

TAB 4 – OIC PRIVATE EQUITY CONSULTANT CONTRACT 

 



 

OIC Private Equity Consultant Contract 
 

 

Purpose 

To address the expiring contract of the OIC’s private equity consultant, expiring on 

December 31, 2014. 

 

Background 

Staff conducted a complete Request for Information (RFI) process for the OIC’s private 

equity consultant in 2007. At the April 25, 2007 OIC meeting, Pacific Corporate Group 

(now known as TorreyCove) was selected by the Council. After the initial three year 

term, which ended on December 31, 2010, the OIC exercised its option to extend the 

contract through December 31, 2012.  The contract was additionally extended by the OIC 

through December 31, 2014, at its October 31, 2012 meeting.   

 

Under OST Policy 4.01.13 (attached), new contracts are awarded for three year-periods 

and can be renewed no more than twice and are limited to a final expiration date that is 

no more than four years beyond the original expiration. At the end of seven years, 

contracts are to be re-bid and a new seven year cycle begins.  TorreyCove’s contract will 

be at the seven year policy limit at the end of 2014. 

 

Discussion 

Given the recent pace of private equity investment, as well as the retirement of the Senior 

Private Equity Investment Officer earlier in 2014, Staff believes it is prudent to defer the 

solicitation process for a private equity consultant until 2015.  

 

Recommendation 

Staff proposes that the OIC extend the contract of TorreyCove, working in concert with 

the Oregon Department of Justice, subject to existing fees and terms, for an additional 

one year period ending December 31, 2015. 

 

 



 

OFFICE OF THE STATE TREASURER Investment Manual 

Policies and Procedures      Activity Reference:  4.01.13 
 

FUNCTION: General Policies and Procedures 

ACTIVITY:  Consulting Contracts 
                                                                                                                                                                

POLICY: All consultants of the Council, including but not limited to, full-

service consultants as well as specific asset class advisors (e.g. real estate, alternative 

equities) shall be engaged by the Council through a form of written contract. These 

contracts shall have specified expiration dates, termination clauses and 

renewal/extension terms. Before the end of the contract term (including any 

renewals or extensions granted) a formal “request for proposal” (RFP) process shall 

be undertaken by Staff for the purpose of identifying new candidates, upgraded 

services, competitive pricing and any other information considered relevant to Staff 

and the Council. 

                                                                                                                                     

 PROCEDURES: 
 

1. Consulting contracts shall be negotiated and executed in compliance with Council 

policy 4.01.10. 

 

2. Consulting contracts shall expire on a date not to exceed three years from the 

effective date of the contract. 

 

3. Consulting contracts shall include a “no-cause” termination clause with a 

maximum 90 day notice period. 

 

4. It is the policy of the Council to continuously review all contractors. 

 

5. Consulting contracts may be renewed or extended beyond the original expiration 

date no more than twice and limited to a final expiration date that is no more than four 

years beyond the original expiration.  

 

6. Upon the final expiration of the original contract, or whenever directed by the 

Council, staff shall undertake and complete an RFP process which shall include the 

following: 

 

a. Identification of those potential candidates who may reasonably be believed 

to perform those services under examination; 

b. Directing of an RFP which shall include, but not be limited to:  

c. Description of services requested; 

d. Description of the potential or preliminary standards required by the Council 

of the candidates; and 

e. Request for pricing or fee schedule information. 

 

7. Consultants under contract to the Council shall disclose, in written investment 

recommendations to the Council, any contact the Consultant’s staff had with Placement 

Agents for the firm being recommended. 

 

   



 

 

DEFINITIONS: 

 

“Placement Agent” includes any third party, whether or not affiliated with an investment 

manager, investment advisory firm, or a general partnership, that is a party to an 

agreement or arrangement (whether oral or written) with an investment manager, 

investment advisory firm, or a general partnership for the direct or indirect payment of a 

Placement Fee in connection with an OIC investment. 

 

“Placement Fee” includes any compensation or payment, directly or indirectly, of a 

commission, finder’s fee, or any other consideration or benefit to be paid to a Placement 

Agent. 

 

SAMPLE FORMS, DOCUMENTS, OR REPORTS (Attached):    None 

 



 

 

 

 

TAB 5 – OIC POLICY UPDATES   

 



OIC Proposed Policy Changes 

September 2014 
  

 

Purpose 

To update several OIC policies to conform such policies with OIC actions and practice. 

 

Discussion 

OIC Policy 4.00.02 provides that the OIC is responsible for approving and revising policies, 

while the Chief Investment Officer (CIO) is responsible for approving and revising procedures.  

Outlined below is a summary of proposed policy changes submitted for OIC approval, as well as 

a summary of CIO-approved procedure changes submitted for OIC information. 

 

1. 4.01.07 & 4.01.08: Provides for explicit statutory language on diversification as well as 

language clarification proposed by the CIO. 

 

2. 4.01.18: Includes language clarification proposed by the CIO. 

 

3. 4.03.02: Corrects “Policy” and “Procedure” classification and more clearly defines 

mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities for inclusion in agency separate accounts.  

Staff believes that existing rules allowing structured securities are overly broad given the 

expanding types of collateral backing.  Staff seeks to limit permitted internal holdings to 

more defined structured investments.  Due to interpretation of SEC Rule 144A (144A) by 

internal counsel, securities defined under 144A should not be purchased for internally-

managed portfolios unless the portfolio is deemed a qualified institutional buyer (QIB) as 

defined by 144A.  Therefore, staff believes 144A securities should not be explicitly 

allowed as a permitted holding for internally-managed portfolios. 

 

4. 4.04.01: Raises OIC approval threshold for single core property maximum from $100 

million to $200 million, and adds additional clarifying policy language.  Also adds 

“Procedures” section for consistency with other private market asset classes.  Clarifies 

and simplifies the OIC’s or OST Committees’ investment consideration decision process.  

Enables CIO to terminate contractual relationships with individual REIT managers upon 

recommendation from the Director of Alternative Investments and the OIC’s advisor.  

Establishes updated capital call procedure. 

 

5. 4.06.01: Clarifies and simplifies the OIC’s or OST Committees’ investment 

consideration decision process, and establishes updated capital call procedure. 

 

6. 4.06.02: Clarifies and simplifies the OIC’s or OST Committees’ investment 

consideration decision process, and establishes updated capital call procedure. 

 

7. 4.06.03: Clarifies and simplifies the OIC’s or OST Committees’ investment 

consideration decision process, and establishes updated capital call procedure.  

Eliminates annual on-site visit requirement given current staffing constraints. 

 



8. OIC Statement of Fund Governance: Updates Section 3.0, “Decisions Retained by the 

Council,” to reflect above-outlined changes to private markets procedures. 

 

Recommendation 

Approve proposed OIC Policy changes as outlined above and as reflected in the attached 

materials. 































































































































 

 

 

Oregon Savings Growth Plan 

Proposed Policy Changes 

September 2014 

Purpose 

Staff proposes updating various policies related to the Oregon Savings Growth Plan. 

Background 

The Oregon Savings Growth Plan (the “Plan” or “OSGP”) is the State of Oregon’s 457 Deferred 

Compensation plan.  OSGP is a voluntary supplemental retirement plan that provides eligible state 

and local government employees the opportunity to defer a portion of their current salary on a pre-

tax or after-tax (Roth) basis.  These deferrals are invested in various investment options until 

participants draw funds at retirement.  The Plan offers an array of specific equity and fixed income 

investment options, a suite of target-date retirement funds (which in aggregate are considered one 

investment option) and a self-directed brokerage option (the “SDBO”).  The plan has 

approximately 25,000 participants and assets totaling over $1.63 billion as of June 30, 2014. 

With support and assistance from the Oregon State Treasury (OST) investment division, the 

Oregon Investment Council (OIC) is responsible for oversight of the Plan’s investment program.  

Oversight of the Plan’s administrative operation is the responsibility of the Oregon Public 

Employees Retirement System Board (“PERS Board”) with support from the OSGP manager.  

Additional oversight is provided by a seven member Deferred Compensation Advisory Committee 

(the “Advisory Committee”) established under ORS 243.505. 

Discussion 

Staff submitted draft edits of OSGP related policies for consideration at the July 30, 2014 OIC 

meeting subject to further Department of Justice (“DOJ”) review.  Since then, DOJ comments and 

edits have been incorporated so staff is now resubmitting these OSGP policy changes (which 

make the Plan and its investment options more consistent with OPERF policies and procedures) 

for final OIC approval.  Please see red-lined attachments for details, and note that the OIC 

previously approved various changes to OSGP investment options as reflected in the attached red-

lined version of 04.07.01. 

Recommendation 

Approve proposed OIC Policy changes for the OSGP. 

 

































 

 

 

 

TAB 6 – ASSET ALLOCATIONS & NAV UPDATES  

. 

 

 



Asset Allocations at August 31, 2014

Variable Fund Total Fund

OPERF Policy Target
1

$ Thousands Pre-Overlay Overlay Net Position Actual $ Thousands $ Thousands

Public Equity 32.5-42.5% 37.5% 28,789,061       41.4% (225,203)                  28,563,858        41.1% 794,601                 29,358,459     

Private Equity 16-24% 20.0% 14,623,924       21.0% 14,623,924        21.0% 14,623,924     

Total Equity 52.5-62.5% 57.5% 43,412,985       62.4% (225,203)                  43,187,782        62.1% 43,982,383     

Opportunity Portfolio 930,436            1.3% 930,436             1.3% 930,436          

Fixed Income 15-25% 20.0% 14,817,252       21.3% 1,713,613                16,530,865        23.8% 16,530,865     

Real Estate 9.5-15.5% 12.5% 7,607,694         10.9% (5,100)                      7,602,594          10.9% 7,602,594       

Alternative Investments 0-10% 10.0% 1,293,457         1.9% 1,293,457          1.9% 1,293,457       

Cash* 0-3% 0.0% 1,516,172         2.2% (1,483,310)               32,862               0.0% 9,333                     42,195            

TOTAL OPERF 100% 69,577,996$     100.0% -$                         69,577,996$      100.0% 803,934$               70,381,930$   

1
Targets established in June 2013.  Interim policy benchmark consists of: 41.5% MSCI ACWI Net, 23.5% Custom FI Benchmark, 20% Russell 3000+300bps (1 quarter lagged), 

  12.5% NCREIF (1 quarter lagged), & 2.5% CPI+400bps. 

*Includes cash held in the policy implementation overlay program.

SAIF Policy Target $ Thousands Actual

Total Equity 7-13% 10.0% 520,753 11.0%

Fixed Income 80-90% 85.0% 4,149,290 87.8%

Real Estate 0-7% 5.0% 0 0.0%

Cash 0-3% 0% 57,728 1.2%

TOTAL SAIF 95% $4,727,771 100.0%

CSF Policy Target $ Thousands Actual

Domestic Equities 25-35% 30% $440,231 30.9%

International Equities 25-35% 30% 416,329 29.2%

Private Equity 0-12% 10% 153,715 10.8%

Total Equity 65-75% 70% 1,010,275 70.9%

Fixed Income 25-35% 30% 409,045 28.7%

Cash 0-3% 0% 6,115 0.4%

TOTAL CSF $1,425,435 100.0%

HIED Policy Target $ Thousands Actual

Domestic Equities 20-30% 25% $20,995 27.5%

International Equities 20-30% 25% 20,389 26.7%

Private Equity 0-15% 10% 7,428 9.7%

Growth Assets 50-75% 60% 48,812 63.9%

Real Estate 0-10% 7.5% 5,828 7.6%

TIPS 0-10% 7.5% 4,641 6.1%

Inflation Hedging 7-20% 15% 10,469 13.7%

Fixed Income 20-30% 25% 16,583 21.7%

Cash 0-3% 0% 560 0.7%

Diversifying Assets 20-30`% 25% 17,143 22.4%

TOTAL HIED $76,424 100.0%

Regular Account



37.5% 

20.0% 20.0% 

12.5% 
10.0% 

0.0% 

41% 

21% 

1% 

24% 

11% 

2% 
0% 

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%
35.0%
40.0%
45.0%

Public Equity Private Equity Opportunity
Portfolio

Fixed Income Real Estate Alternative
Investments

Cash*

OPERF Asset Allocation 

Target1 Actual

10% 

85% 

5% 
0% 

11% 

88% 

0% 1% 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Total Equity Fixed Income Real Estate Cash

SAIF Asset Allocation 

Target Actual

30% 30% 

10% 

30% 

0% 

31% 
29% 

11% 

29% 

0% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Domestic
Equities

International
Equities

Private Equity Fixed Income Cash

CSF Asset Allocation 

Target Actual

25% 25% 

10% 

15% 

25% 
27% 27% 

10% 
14% 

22% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Domestic
Equities

International
Equities

Private Equity Inflation Hedging Diversifying
Assets

HIED Asset Allocation 

Target Actual

TAB 06.01a PUBLIC - 083114_assetallocation



 54,728  

 57,297  

 56,318  

 55,487  

 56,879  

 58,030  
 58,419   58,382  

 56,106  

 57,904  
 58,524   58,627  

 59,698  
 59,322   59,321  

 61,056  

 62,068   61,940  

 63,027  

 63,886  
 63,241   63,053  

 64,221  

 63,069  

 65,255  

 66,323   66,331  

 67,913  

 66,491  

 67,769  

 69,155  
 69,018  

 69,507  

 70,840  

 70,095  

 70,382  

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

 50,000

 55,000

 60,000

 65,000

 70,000

 75,000

S
e
p
-1

1

O
c
t-

1
1

N
o
v
-1

1

D
e
c
-1

1

J
a
n
-1

2

F
e
b
-1

2

M
a

r-
1
2

A
p
r-

1
2

M
a

y
-1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

J
u
l-

1
2

A
u
g
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

O
c
t-

1
2

N
o
v
-1

2

D
e
c
-1

2

J
a
n
-1

3

F
e
b
-1

3

M
a

r-
1
3

A
p
r-

1
3

M
a

y
-1

3

J
u
n
-1

3

J
u
l-

1
3

A
u
g
-1

3

S
e
p
-1

3

O
c
t-

1
3

N
o
v
-1

3

D
e
c
-1

3

J
a
n
-1

4

F
e
b
-1

4

M
a

r-
1
4

A
p
r-

1
4

M
a

y
-1

4

J
u
n
-1

4

J
u
l-

1
4

A
u
g
-1

4

OPERF NAV 
Three years ending August 2014 

($ in Millions) 



 4,069  

 4,169  

 4,106  

 4,164  

 4,268  
 4,304  

 4,284  

 4,335  
 4,304  

 4,340  

 4,455   4,460  
 4,505  

 4,408   4,403   4,420   4,439   4,452   4,459  

 4,542  

 4,459  

 4,356  

 4,440  

 4,389  

 4,456  
 4,416   4,408   4,417  

 4,475  

 4,527   4,532  

 4,589  
 4,633  

 4,659  
 4,683   4,728  

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

 5,000

S
e
p
-1

1

O
c
t-

1
1

N
o

v
-1

1

D
e

c
-1

1

J
a
n
-1

2

F
e
b
-1

2

M
a
r-

1
2

A
p
r-

1
2

M
a
y
-1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

J
u

l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

O
c
t-

1
2

N
o

v
-1

2

D
e

c
-1

2

J
a
n
-1

3

F
e
b
-1

3

M
a
r-

1
3

A
p
r-

1
3

M
a
y
-1

3

J
u
n
-1

3

J
u

l-
1
3

A
u
g
-1

3

S
e
p
-1

3

O
c
t-

1
3

N
o

v
-1

3

D
e

c
-1

3

J
a
n
-1

4

F
e

b
-1

4

M
a
r-

1
4

A
p
r-

1
4

M
a
y
-1

4

J
u
n
-1

4

J
u

l-
1
4

A
u
g
-1

4

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

SAIF NAV  
Three years ending August 2014 

($ in Millions) 



 997  

 1,073   1,077   1,072  
 1,090  

 1,128  
 1,140   1,135  

 1,073  
 1,087  

 1,101  
 1,119  

 1,145   1,155  

 1,184   1,179  

 1,213   1,217  
 1,234  

 1,259   1,254  

 1,207  

 1,244  
 1,226  

 1,280  

 1,332  

 1,369   1,362  
 1,339  

 1,382   1,391   1,395  
 1,420  

 1,451  

 1,392  

 1,425  

 500

 700

 900

 1,100

 1,300

 1,500

 1,700

S
e
p
-1

1

O
c
t-

1
1

N
o

v
-1

1

D
e

c
-1

1

J
a
n
-1

2

F
e

b
-1

2

M
a
r-

1
2

A
p
r-

1
2

M
a
y
-1

2

J
u
n
-1

2

J
u

l-
1
2

A
u
g
-1

2

S
e
p
-1

2

O
c
t-

1
2

N
o

v
-1

2

D
e

c
-1

2

J
a

n
-1

3

F
e
b
-1

3

M
a
r-

1
3

A
p
r-

1
3

M
a
y
-1

3

J
u
n
-1

3

J
u

l-
1
3

A
u
g
-1

3

S
e
p
-1

3

O
c
t-

1
3

N
o

v
-1

3

D
e

c
-1

3

J
a
n
-1

4

F
e
b
-1

4

M
a
r-

1
4

A
p
r-

1
4

M
a
y
-1

4

J
u
n
-1

4

J
u

l-
1
4

A
u
g
-1

4

M
il

li
o

n
s
 

CSF NAV 
Three years ending August 2014 

($ in Millions) 



 

 

 

 

TAB 7 – CALENDAR/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

. 

 

 



2014 OIC Forward Agenda Topics 
 

 

 

November 5: OSTF Annual Review 

 OPERF Public Equity Review 

 OPERF Alternative Portfolio Review 

 SAIF Annual Review 

 OIC Investment Beliefs 

 Internal Audit Report 

 Approve 2015 Board Calendar 

 

December 3: Updated OPERF A/L Study 

 CEM Benchmarking Report 

 OPERF Real Estate Manager 

 OPERF Opportunity Portfolio Review 

 CSF Annual Review 

 OPERF 3
rd

 Quarter Performance Review 

 

January 2015: OPERF Fixed Income Review 

 HIED Annual Review 

 


	AGENDA 
	TAB 1 – REVIEW & APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	TAB 2 – DIMENSIONAL FUND ADVISORS
	TAB 3 – OPERF REAL ESTATE REVIEW
	TAB 4 – OIC PRIVATE EQUITY CONSULTANT CONTRACT
	TAB 5 – OIC POLICY UPDATES
	TAB 6 – ASSET ALLOCATIONS & NAV UPDATES
	TAB 7 – CALENDAR/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS



